UNITED
NATIONS A

Di str.
GENERAL

XN
\\/‘“ 1}\} General Assembly

=<

A/ CN. 9/ SR 594
24 Narch 1997

ORI G NAL: ENGLI SH

UNI TED NATI ONS COWM SSI ON ON | NTERNATI ONAL TRADE LAW
Twenty-ni nth session
SUMMARY RECORD OF THE 594t h MEETI NG
Hel d at Headquarters, New York,
on Tuesday, 4 June 1996, at 3 p.m

Chai r man; Ms. PIAGE de VANGCSSI (Argentina)

CONTENTS

ELECTRONI C DATA | NTERCHANGE: DRAFT MODEL LAW POSSI BLE FUTURE WORK ( conti nued)

This record is subject to correction

Corrections should be subnmitted in one of the working | anguages. They
shoul d be set forth in a menmorandum and al so incorporated in a copy of the
record. They should be sent within one week of the date of this docunent to
the Chief, Oficial Records Editing Section, Ofice of Conference and Support
Services, room DC2-794, 2 United Nations Pl aza.

Any corrections to the records of the meetings of this session will be
consolidated in a single corrigendum to be issued shortly after the end of
t he session.

96- 80742 (E) /...



A/ CN. 9/ SR 594
Engl i sh
Page 2

The neeting was called to order at 3.10 p.m

ELECTRONI C DATA | NTERCHANGE: DRAFT MODEL LAW POSSI BLE FUTURE WORK ( conti nued)
(A/50/17; A/ CN. 9/ 421 and 426)

Article 2
1. The CHAI RMAN suggested that the Comm ssion should resunme consideration of

the proposal to replace the words "generated, stored or comunicated" in
subparagraph (c) by "comuni cated or generated prior to storage, if any".

2. M. SCHNEIDER (Gernmany) said that it was necessary to distinguish between
three different situations: where a nessage had been generated, but had not
been communi cat ed; where a nmessage had been communi cat ed, but had not been

gener ated; and where a nessage had been generated and comunicated. Hi s

del egation felt that the phrase should read "generated and comuni cated”, since
ot herwi se there would be problens. A person who comuni cated a nmessage coul d be
an agent or enployee, in which case he could not be considered the originator

A situation where information had been generated but not communi cated was al so a
situation in which there was no origi nator

3. Ms. BOSS (United States of Anerica) said that whether the Conm ssion opted
for the words "conmuni cated or generated" or the words "comunicated and
generated", there would be instances in which the fit was | ess than perfect.

The question of whether a person who comuni cated a nmessage was the originator
could only be answered by deternining the purpose for which that information was
needed. For the purposes of chapter 111, it was appropriate to say that the
person who conmuni cated a nessage was i ndeed the originator, although in matters
of admssibility, it mght not be the correct conclusion. Article 2 gave a
general definition of "originator” which took on neani ng dependi ng on the
context. The Quide to Enactment could be very useful in show ng how that
definition could be used in the context of the rules in chapter Il and

chapter Il1l. Her delegation felt that if there was a majority in favour of
using the connective "or", that would be quite satisfactory.

4. M. ALLEN (United Kingdom) said that the case of an agent acting on behalf
of an originator was sufficiently covered by the words "or on whose behal f".

5. It was inportant for the definition of the term"originator"™ to cover cases
in which a draft had been prepared but not actually comunicated. It was not
necessary to distinguish between drafts and fini shed docunents because each
docunent created was a data nessage which mght or m ght not be comuni cat ed.
However, in each case there was an originator: if the docunent was not

conmuni cated, the originator was the person who generated it; if the docunent
was conmuni cated, the originator was the person who communicated it, even if he
was not the same person who originally generated it

6. M. VARSO (Slovakia) said that the originator should be defined as the
aut hor of a draft message, who was protected by copyright rules. He agreed that
the word "or"™ should be replaced by "and"



A/ CN. 9/ SR 594
Engl i sh
Page 3

7. M. SORIEUL (International Trade Law Branch) said it seemed as though the
Conmi ssi on was near consensus on the substance of the text. He suggested that
the text should be sent to the drafting group for clarification of the exact
formul ati on.

8. M. SANDOVAL LOPEZ (Chile) said that his del egation supported that
suggesti on.

9. M. SCHNEI DER (Gernmany) said that the Comm ssion was considering matters of
policy and could not redefine themas drafting matters. Hi s del egation could
agree on the substance of the text if an explanation was added in the Guide to
Enact nent al ong the lines suggested by the representative of the United States
of America.

10. The CHAI RMAN said that subparagraph (c) would be referred to the drafting
group.

11. M. HONAND (United Kingdonm said that it was inportant to make it clear in
subparagraph (d) that the addressee was the ultinmate intended recipient.

12. M. CHOUKRI (Qoserver for Mrocco) said that the definition of the term
"addressee" was not sufficiently clear. |[If soneone received a nmessage, it m ght
be froman intermediary, not the originator. It nmust be specified that the
message was received fromthe addressee.

13. Ms. BOSS (United States of Anerica) said it was inportant to retain the
word "but" to make it absolutely clear that internediaries were not considered
to be addressees. Her delegation agreed that it was inportant to consider who
t he i ntended addressee, rather than the actual recipient, was. The Conm ssion
shoul d retain the original text.

14. Article 2, subparagraph (d was adopt ed.

15. M. HONAND (United Kingdonm said that the word "internediary" was not used
anywhere in the text except in the definitions in article 2, subparagraphs (c)
and (d), where it appeared for the purpose of being excluded. Subparagraph (e)
as currently drafted defined any agent as an intermedi ary, and under

subpar agraphs (c) and (d) they woul d be excluded fromthe coverage of the Mde
Law.

16. M. LLOYD (Australia) agreed with the representative of the United Ki ngdom
The current definition was too broad, and took into account agents who shoul d
not be referred to as "internediaries”

17. M. TELARANTA (Finland) expressed support for the position of the United
States of Anerica

18. Ms. BOSS (United States of Anerica) said that the presence of a definition
of "internediary", and its exclusion fromthe definitions of "originator" and
"addressee", were essential in order to ensure that the Mddel Law woul d not bind
those who were merely providing services with respect to a particul ar nessage.
The definition currently contained in subparagraph (e) mght be very broad,



A/ CN. 9/ SR 594
Engl i sh
Page 4

extending to persons who were not internmediaries in the technical sense, but it
was successful in that it did not exclude fromthe Mdel Law any persons who
shoul d be covered by it. Her delegation therefore felt that it should be

retai ned.

19. M. UCH DA (Japan) agreed with the representative of the United Ki ngdom
that the current definition was too broad.

20. M. PHUA (Singapore) supported the United States position. Those who felt
that the current definition was too broad shoul d produce a new draft, rather
than sinmply proposing the deletion of the word "internediary".

21. M. FARIDI ARAGH (Islamc Republic of Iran) favoured retention of the
current wording.

22. M. MADRID (Spain) said that the definition of "internediary" should remain
unchanged, but that it would be useful to specify in the Guide to Enactnent that
the word was not being used in the technical sense in which it was generally
used in the field of electronic comunications.

23. M. CHOUKRI (Qbserver for Mrocco) agreed that the definition should remain
unchanged.

24. M. MASUD (Cbserver for Pakistan) supported the point nade by the
representative of the United Kingdom The current definition of "internediary”
was very broad, and would extend to types of agents which should not be

i ncl uded, such as enpl oyees of the originator or of the addressee.

25. M. BAUM (nserver for the International Chanber of Conmerce) expressed
support for the United States position. Considerable efforts to find inproved
definitions for "internediary" or alternative terns, such as "third-party
service provider", had proved unsuccessful; there was no sinple solution, and he
urged the Commission to retain the current text.

26. M. GJREYEVA (Russian Federation) supported the position of the United
States of Anerica

27. M. HONAND (United Kingdom, supported by M. LLOYD (Australia) and

M . ANDERSEN (Cbserver for Denmark), proposed that the current definition of
"intermedi ary" should be replaced with the phrase "a person who, as part of his
busi ness, provides to another person services of receiving, transmtting or
storing data nmessages".

28. M. SANDOVAL LOPEZ (Chile) said that the definition should remain
unchanged.

29. M. MADRID (Spain) strongly supported the representative of Chile. It was
i nappropriate to propose a drafting change, since it had not been agreed that
the existing text should not be retained. Mreover, the relatively narrow
definition proposed by the United Kingdomwould |l eave a gap in the law, certain
persons, such as enpl oyees of originators or of addressees, would fall outside
the definitions of "originator"”, "addressee", and "internediary".



A/ CN. 9/ SR 594
Engl i sh
Page 5

30. The CHAIRMAN said that there was clearly no consensus in favour of changing
the text of subparagraph (e). Accordingly, she invited the Conm ssion to turn
its attention to subparagraph (f).

31. M. UCH DA (Japan) proposed that, in the second |line of subparagraph (f),
the words "information in" should be deleted in order to make the wording
consistent with the definition of "data nessage" in subparagraph (a).

32. M. HONAND (United Kingdom proposed that the subparagraph shoul d be
anended to read "'Informati on system neans technol ogy for generating,
transmitting, receiving, storing or otherw se processing a data nessage."”

33. M. BGSS (United States of America) suggested that the proposal to use the
word "technol ogy", rather than "a system, could be left to the drafting group
whi ch woul d det erm ne whether the change had any inplications for the rest of
the text. Oherw se, the proposals nmade by the representatives of Japan and the
United Ki ngdom were accept abl e.

The neeting was suspended at 4.30 p.m and resuned at 5.05 p. m

34. M. MADRID (Spain) endorsed the anmendnments proposed by the representatives
of Japan and the United Kingdomto subparagraph (f), which would now read
""Informati on system neans a systemfor generating, transmitting, receiving,
storing or otherw se processing data nessages." However, he continued to have
reservations regarding the repetition of the word "systent in the definition; he
hoped that the drafting group would come up with a better alternative.

35. M. LLOYD (Australia) supported the anmendnments proposed by Japan and the
United Ki ngdom but opposed the use of "technology" to replace "system in the
definition. The term"technol ogy” inplied the capacity to do sonething, whereas
a "system suggested sonething tangible in operation

36. M. ZHANG Yuqing (China) agreed with the representative of Australia that

"technol ogy" referred to know how rather than to equipnrent. It was nore
accurate to say that messages were entered into an "information systent than
into a "technol ogy". He endorsed the anendnents proposed by the United Ki ngdom
and Japan

37. M. CHANDLER (United States of Anerica), supported by Ms. REMSU (Cbserver
for Canada), endorsed the view of the representative of Australia and ot her
speakers who believed that the term "technol ogy" should not be used in the
definition of an "information system in subparagraph (f). "Technol ogica
system or "technol ogical infrastructure” m ght be possible solutions; however,
the drafting group would ultimately be responsible either for finding a fornula
that all agreed to or for deciding to retain the existing | anguage.

38. M. TELL (France) said he believed it would be wong to repeat the word
"system in the definition in subparagraph (f) and hoped the drafting group
woul d cone up with a better solution

39. The CHAIRMAN said that the consensus was to adopt the Japanese proposal to
delete the words "information in" and to add the words "or otherw se processing

/...



A/ CN. 9/ SR 594
Engl i sh
Page 6

dat a messages” at the end of subparagraph (f), as proposed by the representative
of the United Kingdom Furthernore, nost del egations agreed that the term
"technol ogy" woul d not be an appropriate replacenent for "systent

40. Article 2, as anended, was adopt ed.

Article "x"

41. M. SORIEUL (International Trade Law Branch) introduced draft article "x",
on contracts of carriage involving data nessages, which was contained in the
annex to document A/CN.9/421. The article in question was not intended to
provi de answers to all questions that might arise in the area of maritine | aw
and el ectronic data transm ssion. Rather, article "x" sought to anal yse the
functions fulfilled by maritime transport docunents which were to be repl aced by
one or several data nessages and to determ ne the conditions data messages
shoul d meet so that they had the sane legal validity as paper docunents.
Paragraph 1 of article "x" provided a description of the functions fulfilled by
negot i abl e and non-negoti abl e paper docunents, and the subsequent paragraphs
referred to the legal conditions that nust be fulfilled by contracts of

carri age.

42. M. CHANDLER (United States of Anerica) said that draft article "x"
represented an interesting proposal in support of electronic bills of |ading and
provided rules that could be adapted to various types of bills of lading or
contracts of carriage. |If the article was adopted, the Mdel Law would provide
assurances that the use of electronic docunments woul d be recogni zed and
permtted.

43. Currently, only a few EDI nessages were being used for ocean transport.
Wil e existing rules prepared by organi zati ons such as the Conité naritine
international (CM) could provide detail ed gui dance on the use of electronic
nessages to create bills of lading, they could not provide a | egal basis for
such bills since the rules were voluntary. Wen a country required that a bil

of lading should be on paper and bear certain seals, CM rules could not bypass
that requirenment, even if the parties agreed to it. Al such rules needed | ega
under pi nni ngs, which the Mddel Law would provide. Hi s delegation strongly
supported adoption of article "x" and believed it should be renanmed article "A"
and placed at the beginning of a section on particular use rules. He proposed
that the Mbdel Law should be divided into two sections, one in which general use
rules woul d appear as articles with nunbers, and a second section on particular
use rules, which would appear as articles with letters, the first of which would
be article "A", i.e. the existing article "

X",

44, M. HONAND (United Kingdom) endorsed the views of the representative of
the United States of Anerica and said that his delegation strongly supported the
adoption of article "x" and agreed to it being renaned article A The article
in question did much to renove |egal inpedinments in the field of transport
contracts by means of electronic comunication and was a useful facilitating
neasure.

45. M. MAZZONI (Italy) supported the statenments of the United States of
America and the United Ki ngdom



A/ CN. 9/ SR 594
Engl i sh
Page 7

46. M. PHUA (Singapore), noting that the concepts contained in article "x"
mrrored many of those contained in the Mddel Law, asked how article "x"
ext ended the concepts found in the Mddel Law.

47. M. TELL (France) said that the provisions set out in paragraph 1 (f) of
article "x" were the nost inportant since they made that article applicable
under negotiable terms. It was therefore respect for legal security which would
gui de the subsequent position of his delegation. He could not endorse the text
unl ess it unanbi guously set forth the applicability to that article of the

m ni mum guar antees contained in articles 6 and 7 of the Mdel Law.

48. In general terns, the proposed text should al so provide security guarantees
that were conmparable to the witten ones regarding the authenticity of the
title. In that regard, he proposed the addition of a paragraph to article "x"

whi ch woul d read "The provisions of articles 6 and 7 are applicable to the
present article or to article '"x""

49. M. MADRID (Spain) said that the concerns raised by the representatives of
France and Si ngapore highlighted the need for the Conm ssion to clarify both the
substance and formof article "x". The existence of article "x" should not |ead
to the erroneous conclusion that the Mdel Law would not be applicable to that
area without that article. It was not necessary to state that article 6 or
article 7 was applicable: the Mdel Law was general in nature and was applied
in a general way. Article "x" was a clarification put forward by the

Conmi ssion. For the purposes of unifornmty, the Comm ssion was pronoting the
opportunity for a uniformapplication of the Mddel Law in the specific area of
the contract of carriage of goods. H s delegation, supported article "x", but
agreed with the representative of Singapore on the need for further
clarification. Such explanations could be included in the GQuide in order to
avoid misinterpretations.

50. Concerning the format of the article, while other nodel |aws m ght have a
tradition of using lettered articles, his delegation was not famliar with that
practice. The Wrking Goup should find some other forrmula, or else the
secretariat's formula of a general Part | and a specific Part Il could be used.
In the Worki ng Group, sone del egations had been reluctant to consider the
guestion of annexes because they felt that annexes had a subordi nate ranking.
In his country, the provisions of an annex had the sane binding force as

provi sions appearing in the body of a docunent.

51. M. Wn Kyong KIM (Cbserver for the Republic of Korea) said that in the
absence of a specific decision on the position of article "x" no proper
del i berations could be held about its contents.

52. M. CHANDLER (United States of America) said that the concern of the
representative of France could easily be accommopdated by inserting the words
"subj ect to the general provisions" at the beginning of article "x",

paragraph (1). That would ensure that articles 6, 7 and any others applied to
article "x" as a whole. Wth regard to the Singaporean del egation's concern
about duplication of wording, such duplication had occurred in a nunber of
par agr aphs because of a particular need in transport documents to explain things
fully, thus mnimzing the chances of overlooking certain details. He



A/ CN. 9/ SR 594
Engl i sh
Page 8

under st ood, however, that notw thstanding the duplications, the genera
provi si ons al ways appl i ed.

53. M. MASUD (Cbserver for Pakistan) said that, except for a very genera
provision that would facilitate the use of ED wherever it was permtted by

i ndi vidual |egal regines, the Comm ssion would be going beyond its mandate to

i nclude things that were intended to override the various |egal regines involved
in the carriage of goods.

54. M. ZHANG Yuging (China) agreed with the observer for the Republic of Korea
concerning the inportance of the position of article "x". The Conm ssion was

i ntending to adopt a nodel |aw involving general provisions on EDI which called
into question the Mbdel Law s scope of application. O the articles already

di scussed, only article 13 was simlar to article "x"; otherwise, the entire
Model Law dealt with procedural issues. The basic provisions should be applied
to specific comrercial activities. Article "x", however, dealt with the
specific application of the Model Law to contracts of carriage.

55. Since his delegation had every confidence in the future devel opment of EDI,
it wondered whether a conplete nodel |aw thereon could be drafted at present.
Various annexes could be attached to the Mddel Law, such as an annex on the
formation of contracts and another on carriage of goods. It could be noted that
t he Conm ssion had the obligation, in accordance with the devel opnent of
international trade, to formulate additional annexes. That woul d make the
provisions of the first part conplete, and the use of annexes woul d have the
advant age of being open-ended so that adjustnents could be made for future

devel opnents. The provisions of the annexes shoul d have the sanme force as the
provi sions of the Mdel Law itself.

56. M. FALVEY (Observer for the International Association of Ports and

Har bors) said that his organi zati on supported the Mddel Law generally and al so
article "x". However, he shared sonme of the Chinese del egation's concerns about
potential problenms in connection with the inplenentation of either the Mddel Law
or article "x". Article "x" was nerely an exanple of how the Mdel Law s

provi sions could be inplenmented in respect of a specific set of docunents,

nanely transport docunents. Redundant drafting was very prudent, since it
protected against fraud and the Iike and gave assurances to the business
community that both the Mbddel Law and its annex would be inplenented in a

busi nessli ke manner. For those reasons, he supported both the genera

provisions of the Mddel Law and article "x". |In order to satisfy sone of the
qual ms expressed by sone del egations regarding the placenent of article "x
within the Model Law, the drafting group m ght consider including a disclainmer
to the effect that nothing contained in article "x" could be deened to alter
amend, repeal or detract fromthe general provisions of the Mdel Law

The nmeeting rose at 6.05 p. m




